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On-Call Consultant Services 
RFQ Questions/Answers   
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Professional On-Call Aviation 
Business Consultant Services 

Submitted Questions with Responses 
 

1. If we are unable to secure an appropriate partner for the omnibus RFQ, can we submit a 
response for the Air Service Development role only? 
NAA Response: Yes, however, we cannot guarantee it will be given full consideration.  
The Authority intends to consider the fully scoped team proposals first.   
 

2. Can the airport provide interested parties the opportunity to express their interest in 
individual components of the RFQ so that they can potentially facilitate partnerships?  
We suspect most prospective firms will require partnerships, but most are unfamiliar with 
other interested parties. 
NAA Response:  The Authority has provided the preproposal roster with contact 
information.  The Authority does not intend to stand up a matchmaking type of platform. 
 

3. Could you confirm that a registration and/or any license with the State of Virginia and/or 
the City of Norfolk for the right to perform work can be obtained after the proposal is 
accepted? 
NAA Response:  No.  Proposer must be registered or at least have applied and are 
awaiting acceptance. 
 

4. Could you confirm that there are no other required forms aside from the Proposal Form? 
NAA Response:  Correct. 
 

5. Could you confirm that the proposer is not required to provide a Certificate of Insurance 
at time of submittal?  
NAA Response:  Confirmed.  This will be required at the time the contract is signed. 
 

6. Are there insurance amounts designated or are they negotiated after the prospective 
bidder is called in?  
NAA Response:  Insurance amounts are designated and attached. 
 

7. Is there an estimated budget amount for this contract?  
NAA Response: No.  This is an on-call contract. 
 

8. How will each section of the proposal be weighted in terms of budget allocation and 
selection process. 
NAA Response:  No budgets are assigned.  As for the selection process, the Authority 
will determine the relative importance at its sole discretion.   
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9. Who currently serves as the incumbent or recent consultant for the DBE program 
requirement? 
NAA Response: See Question #10. 
 

10. Who are other incumbent or recent consultants in any of the other topics in question in 
this RFQ?  
NAA Response:  The following have recently or is currently providing services.  All are 
considered in good standing: 
 
Strategic General and Business Planning – None 
 
Negotiation, Development, and/or Implementation of RFPs, RFQs, Leases and 
Development Agreements – DKMG Consulting LLC for Airline Use and Lease 
Agreement,              Benzon Aviation Consulting for FBO RFP process. 
 
Rental Car Concession and Consolidated Rental Car Facility 
 
Air Service Development – AV8 (Buddy Anslinger) 
 
Financial Compliance and Planning – DKMG Consulting LLC 
 
Land Use Study (on and off airport land) – None 
 
DBE/ACDBE/SWAM – Ken Weeden & Associates 
 
Compliance with Various Aviation-Related Funding Sources – None 
 
Executive recruiting and employee compensation study – ACS Firm 
 

11. Could you confirm that rates and charges will be negotiated after submission and 
acceptance of the bidder's proposal? 
NAA Response: Yes 
 

12. Could you provide the most recent contract for Air Service Development. 
NAA Response:  Yes, see attached. 
 

13. Could you provide a list of all certified DBE, WBE and MBE business doing business at 
ORF? 
NAA Response: The Authority is currently in the process of transitioning platforms to 
allow automated creation of such a list.  As this currently is a very manual process, we 
are unable to provide a complete list at this time.   Aside from tracking vendors on the 
financial platform, DBE and ACDBE suppliers are included in the Authority’s respective 
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annual reports to the FAA.  In the most recent report, DBE vendors included TyE Bar 
LLC, Global Project Controls LLC, Jones Hauling LLC, Connico Inc. and Precision 
Measurements Inc.  ON the ACDBE side, The Authority does business with Departure 
Media Inc., FDY Inc. and NIA Corp.   
 

14. Please confirm if SWAM business are the same as MWDBE firms. 
NAA Response:  SWAM businesses are defined by the Virginia Department of Small 
Business and Supplier Diversity at this link:  SWaM Certification – The Department of 
Small Business and Supplier Diversity (virginia.gov).   
 

15. What is the recommended font size for the document?  
NAA Response: 12 
 

16. Please confirm that there is no required SWAM percentage.  
NAA Response:  The Authority is currently developing SWAM goal setting methodology 
and does not yet have a minimum percentage.  Meanwhile, we anticipate a reasonable 
effort to include SWAM participation.   
 

17. Please confirm that there is no page limitation for the resumes that are to be submitted 
with this proposal. 
NAA Response:  Correct. 
 

18. We acknowledge that this contract scope includes assisting with the planning around 
DBE/ACDBE/SWAM goals, and the Authority has shown such strong support for 
business and workplace inclusivity. We'd like to ask if you would consider establishing a 
business diversity goal on this RFQ? 
NAA Response:  See Question #16. 
 

19. The RFQ requests 3 references for work. Would you consider allowing and evaluating 
more than 3 references for this RFQ given the teaming-approach some are taking on this 
project? 
NAA Response:  Yes 
 

20. Is there a list of airports you deem “direct competitors”? 
NAA Response:  Newport News/Williamsburg Airport (PHF), Richmond International 
Airport (RIC). 
 

21. Could you please provide a list of consultants that have ended services within the last 
year and/or currently under contract and when their agreements are expected to end as it 
relates to the services in this RFQ? 
NAA Response:  See Question #10. 
 

https://sbsd.virginia.gov/certification-division/swam/
https://sbsd.virginia.gov/certification-division/swam/
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22. Does Norfolk Airport have a budget for this opportunity? 
NAA Response:  See Question #7. 
 

 



Question #6 Attachment 

Professional Liability 
 

Professional Liability $1,000,000 
 
Commercial General Liability 
  

General Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000 
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000 
Fire Damage Limit (Any One Fire) $100,000 
Medical Expense Limit (Any One Person) $10,000 
Hold Harmless Agreement Existence Stated in CGL 
Contract 
  

  

  
  
Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 
  

Workers’ Compensation Statutory Benefits 
Employers Liability $500/$500/$500,000 or Amount 

Necessary for Excess Liability 
Underwriters 
  

Retention or Deductible None 
                                                                                 
Auto Liability Insurance 
                                                 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage $1,000,000 CSL 
                                                                 



Question #12 Attachment
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